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We have audited the financial statements of Phoenix Power Company SAOG (the “Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with  Inteenational Standacds on Auditing  (1SAs).
Our responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the - lieditors Responsibilities for the -l
af the Vimanital Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International  Lthics Standards Board  €or Accountants’ Code of Fthics fir Prfesstonal -« lomuntants
(inchuding internationatl independeme standirds) (I1ESB.A Code), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financtal statements in Oman, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe rthar the audit
evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropeiare to provide a basis for our opinion,
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audic Matters

ey audit matters are those matters that, m our protessional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the fimancial statements of the current year, These mattees were addressed in the contest of our
audit of the financtal statements as a whole, and in forming our opinton thereon, and we do not provide a
scparate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below o be the key audit
matter to be communicared in our report,

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Assessmeat of impairment of property, plant and equipment

Our audit procedures included the following:

(Refer to Note 4.8 — “praperty. plant and equipment”.
Refer to Note 4.21 — “Significunt prmnagement fudgement
in appiying accounting polécies and estination nncertaingy —
useful lives of dipreciable assets™ and Note 11— “Property,
plant and equipment”’)

e [ivaluated the design  implementation  of
controls for identification and assessment of
any potential impairment related to property,
plant and equipment.

e Involved our own valuation specialist to assist
in evaluatng the appropriateness of the key
inputs and assumptions.

Property, plant and equipment represents 90.20%%
of toral assets on the statement of financial
position. If these were to be impaired, it would

have a significant impact on the reported profit | @ Fvaluated  the  appropriateness  of  the

and the statement of financial position of the assumptions applied to key inputs such as
Company. estimate of future cash flows which included
comparing these  inputs  with our own

Impairment assessment requires judgements and assessments based on our knowledge of the
estimates  towards  future results of business clicnt and the industry.
including key assumptions like discount rate, | ® Tested the mathematical accuracy of  the
growth rate cte. assessmeat.

e Performed sensitivity analysis and evaluated
The earrying value of assets is considered to be a whether any reasonably possible changes in
key audit manter as the amount involved is assumptions could lead to  impairment of
significant and judgements propeny, plant and equipment.

o [ivaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made

in the financial statements.

Other Matter

“The financial statements of the Company for the year eaded 31 December 2022, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmaodified opinion on those statements on 22 February 2023,

Other Information

Managemnent is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual reporr,
Cotporute Governance repoet and Analysis report and Management Discussion bur does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continucd)

Ot¢her Information (continued)

Our opinion on the financial seatements.does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our I'l.‘\p()l‘hl])llll’\‘ is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information s materally inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially msstared. 1f, based
on the work we have performed, on the other information obtained prior to the date of the audit report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 1o report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this cegard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with [FFRSs, with the refevant disclosure requirements of the Capital Market Authority and with
the applicable provisions of the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, 2019, as amended,
and foe such internal control as management determines is tecessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prcp'\nng the financial statements, management is responsible for ¢ 'musmb the (,omp'm) s ability o
continue as a going conceen, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to tssue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a materal misstatement whea it exists, Misstatements
can asise from fraud or error and are constdered material if; individually ot in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usees taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [S.\s, we exercise professtonal judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identfy and assess the sks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtain audiw
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of not
detecting a materinl misstatement resuliing from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

¢ Obmin an understanding of ineernal control relevant to the audit m order to design audit
ptocedures that ace appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
optnion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continucd)

e [Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropdateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a poing
concern. If we conclude that a mateetal uncertainty exists, we are cequired to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. [ lowever, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  [ivaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audic findings, including any stgnificant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audtt.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be chought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current perind and are therefore
the key audit matsers. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 comply, in
all material respects, with the applicable provisions of the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of
Oman, 2019, as amended, and disclosure requirements issued by the Capital Market Authority.
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Phoenix Power Company SAOG
Stalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Year endad Yaar ended Year ended Year ended
31D by 210 b 31 Dy b 31 D b
2023 2023 2022 2022
Natas RO'000 usD'0a0 RQO'000 usoooe
Revenue 5 158,490 412,193 149,159 387.929
Operating costs 8 (119,816} {311,613} (111,202) (289,209)
Groas profit 33,674 100,586 37.957 98,720
Olher income e 800 53 139
General and administrative axpenses 7 {1.468) (3.813) (1.256) {3.269)
Profit before interest and tax 37,516 97,573 36,754 85,590
Finance costs 8 (12,309) {32,021) {13,521) {35.163)
Finance income 5§31 1,536 194 504
Profit before Incoma tax 25,798 67,088 23427 60,931
Income (ax expense 9 {3.875) {10,078) (3.065) (7.972}
Profit for the yaar 21,923 57.010 20,362 52,959
Other comprehensive income
ftems fthat may be reclassifiad
subsequently to profit or loss (net of tax):
Neat movement in falr value of cash flow hedges 21 (203) (529) 24,253 83,077
income {ax effecl 9 b U] 79 (3.638) (9.461)
Other comprehensive {lass)/Income {173) {450) 20,615 53,616
Total comprahensive income for the year 21,750 56,560 40,977 106,575
Basic and diluled eamings per share
(Baisas/Cenis) 10 0.015 0.039 0.014 0.036

The accompanying noles on pages 9 (o 39 form an inlegral part of these financial stalemants

The report of the Auditar is set forth on pages 110 3.




Phoenix Power Company SAQOG
Statemant of financial position
at 31 December 2023

31 D« 31 D kiNo b J1 D b
2023 2023 2022 2022
Notes RO'000 usD000 RO'000 Uso000
ASSETS
Non-currant assals
Property, piant and equipment " 472,363 1,228,508 488,166 12689812
Right-of-use assets 12 7.638 19,868 /7.800 20,288
a, jve fi ial 1ngY s 21@@) 300 778 4,594 11,948
480,301 1.243,15] 500,560 1.301 g48
Current assats
Trade and other recaivables 13 8,751 22,753 7,933 20,631
Invantones 14 11,414 29,687 14365 29,553
Short term deposits 15 7,306 49,000 .
Cash and cash equivalents 16 12,700 33,031 20,259 52,688
Denvative financial mnstrumen’s 21(e) 3,184 8,282 1020 2652
43,155 112,739 40,577 105,524
Total Assels 523,856 1,361,912 $41.137 1.407 372
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capual 1w 146,260 340,330 145 260 380,390
Legal reserve 18 17,225 44,799 15,033 39,088
Retaned eamings 90,033 234,305 78037 202,961
Equity beforo hadging reserve 253,578 59,494 239,330 522,449
Hedging reserve 21 (2,209) (5.748) {2.036) {5.295)
Tatal equity 251,369 553,748 237,294 617,153
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Interast bearing loans and b 9 20 148,198 385,431 183,690 477,734
Derivetive fingncial instruments 21{b) 4,821 12,540 6,553 17,042
Provision for aasat retrement obligation 22 5,376 13,983 5120 13,317
Deferred tax tiabiities 9(b) 45,790 119,089 42,348 110,138
Lease liabilites - non current 5 7,873 20,478 7,90 20,626
Empleyees' end of senvice benefls 24 38 93 32 83
212.096 551,620 245,674 538,940
Current liabitities
Inlerest beating loans and borrowngs 20 36,104 93,699 4,253 89 085
Dividend payab'e 19 2,925 7.600 3,045 7.917
Trade and other payablaa 23 13,968 49,333 18,908 49,169
Derivalive financial instruments 214b) 1,262 3,281 1,456 3,789
Lease fiabililes 25 529 1,375 507 1,319
Provision for income tax 9{a) 403 1,048 . -
50,191 156,544 58169 151,279
Totatl liabilliiea 272,287 708,154 103.843 750.219
Total equity and llabilities 523,655 1,361,912 541.137 1407372
Nat asseis per shara
{Balsas/Cants) 26 0.172 0.447 0 162 0 6%

Thesa financinl stalements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2024 and were signed on their behall by

e L7/

g /w;/

The accompanying nioles on pages § to 32 form an integral part of these financd stalements

The report af the Auditor s set forth on pages 11to 4




Phoenix Power Company SAQOG

Statement of changes in equity
for ihe year ended 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Transfer to legal reserve

Dividends

At 31 December 2022

Profil for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Transfer lo legal reserve

Dividends

At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Transfer fo legal reserve

Dividends

At 31 December 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income far the
year

Transfer to tegal reserve

Dividends

At 31 December 2023

Notes

18
19

18
19

Notes

18
19

18
19

Share Legal Hedging Retained
capital  reserve  reserve earnings Total
RO'006  RO000 RO000 RO'000 RO'000
146,260 12,997 {22,651) 66,293 202,895
- - - 20,362 20,362
- - 20,615 - 20,615
i 20615 20362 40,977
= 2,036 - (2,036) .
- - - (6,582) {6,582)
146,260 15,033 (2,036) 78,037 237,294
- - - 21,923 21,923
(173) (173)
- - (173) 21,923 21,750
- 2,192 - (2,192) -
- - - {7,675) (7.675)
146,260 17,225 {2,208) 90,093 251,369
Share Legal Hedging Retained
capital  reserve reserve earnings Total
UsD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD000 USD'000
380,390 33,802 (58,912) 172416 527,696
- - - 52,959 52,959
- - 53.616 - 53.616
- - 53,616 52,959 106,575
- 5,296 - (5,296) -
. : - (17.118)  (17,118)
380,390 39,098 (5.296) 202961 617,153
- - - 57,010 57,010
. - (450) - {450)
- - (450) 57,010 56,560
- 5.701 - (5,701) -
- - - {19,965)  (19,965)
380,390 44,799 {5,746) 234,305 653,748

The accompanying notes on pages 9 to 39 form an integral parl of these financial stalements.

The report of the Auditor is sel forth on pages 1 (o 4.




Phoenix Power Company SAOG

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Cash flows from operating actlvities

Profit befare income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreclation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on righl-cl-use assels

Finance caosts

Employses’ end of service benefits

Finance income

Operating profit before working capltal changes:
Changes in working capital:

Invenlorles

Trade and cther receivables

Trade and other payables

Cash ganerated from oparations

Finance cosls paid

Employees' end of service benelits paid

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing actlvitles

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Short term deposits
Finance Income received

Nat cash flows (used In) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing aclivities:
Dividend paid

Repayment of interest bearing loans and borrowings
Payment of lease liabililles

Net cash flows used In financing activities
Net (decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Notes

11
12

24

24

1"
15

19

25

16

Year ended Yaarended  Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 Decembear 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO‘00C0 uso'eoo RO600 Usp'ooo
25,798 67,088 23,427 60,931
15,875 41,287 15,865 41,263
264 686 253 657
12,309 32,021 13,521 35,163
6 16 9 23
(591) {1,536) (194) (504)
53,661 139,562 52,881 137,533
(49) (134) {108) (276)
(818) (2,128) 55,132 143,388
60 164 (47,824} {124,386)
52,854 137,464 60,081 156,259
(11,043} {28,733) {12,165) (31,639)
. - (24) (62)
41,811 108,731 47,892 124,558
{72) {183) (14 (35)
(7,306) (19,000} . -
591 1,536 194 504
{6,787) (17.647) 180 469
{7.799) (20,280) (5.950) (15.477)
(34,254) (89,086} (31,700) (82,444)
(530) (1.375) (481} (1.252)
{42.583) {110.741) (38.131) (99,173)
(7,559} (19,657} 9,541 25,854
20,259% 52,688 10,318 26.834
12,700 33,031 20,259 52.688

The accompanying notes on pages 9 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The repor of the Auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 4.




Phoenix Power Company SAOG

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

1 Nature of operations

Phoenix Power Company SAQG (‘the Company”) is registered under the Commercial laws of the Sultanate of
Oman as a Public Joint Stock Company and principal activities of the Company are to develop, finance.
design, construct, operate, maintain, insure and own a power generating slation and associated gas
interconnection facilities and other relevant infrasiructure. The Company's registered address is P O Bax 96,
Postal Code 102, Muscat, Sultanate of Oman. The Company's principal place of business is lacaled at Sur,
Sultanate of Oman.

During the year 2015, the Company proceeded with initial public offering (IPQ). The promoling shareholders
at the Company's Extraordinary General Meeting held an 9 March 2015 approved the canversion of the
Company from a Closed Joint Stack Company (SAOC} ta a Public Joint Stock Company (SAQG) by offering
their 511,910,511 shares for the public subscription, The Company closed its IPO on 8 June 2015 and its
shares were listed on the Muscat Securities Market on 22 June 2015.

2 Significant agreements
The Campany has entered into following significant agreemenis;

i. Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Oman Power and Water Procurement Company SAOC
(OPWP) granling the Company the right lo generate electricity in Sur for a period of fifleen years
commencing from the 1 December 2014 based on a tariff structure.

ii. Natural Gas Sales Agreement (NGSA) with the Ministry of Oil and Gas of the Government of the
Sultanate of Oman (MQOG) for the purchase of natural gas for fifteen years at a pre-determined price.

i, Usufruct Agreement with The Public Establishment For Industrial Estates of the Government of the
Sultanate of Oman (PEIE) far grant of Usufruct rights over the plant site lor twenly five years.

iv. Agreement with lacal and international financial institutions far long-term loan facilities and interest
rale hedge arrangements.

v. Agreement with Siemens LLC Oman for fong term service contract for mainlenance service of the
gas lurbines.

vi, Agreement with Siemens Aktiengeselischaft for long term supply contract for supplying the spare
parts of gas iurbines.

vil, Agreement with Phoenix Operation and Maintenance Company LLC for the Operation and
Maintenance (O&M) of the Sur IPP Projecl.

viid. Agreement with Daswao Engineering and Construclion Co. Ltd for engineering. procurement and
construction of the Sur iPP Project.

ix. Project Founders' Agreement dated 13 July 2011 made between Eleclricity Holding Company

SAQC, Marubeni Corporation; Chubu Electric Power Co; Qatar Electricity and Water Company
{Q.S.C.); and Multitech LLC.

X. Shargehalders’ Agreement dated 13 July 2011, amended and restated dated 28 November 2011
made between Electricity Halding Company SAOC, Axia Power Holdings B.V; Chubu Electric Power
Sur B.V; Qatar Electricity and Water Company {(Q.S.C.); and Multitech LLC.

Xi. Electrical Conneclion Agreement dated 13 July 2011 with Oman Electricity Transmission Company
SAQC for connaction of the Company's equipment to the transmission system.

3 New or revised Standards or Interpretations

31 New standards adopted as at 1 January 2023
Some accounting pronauncements which have become effective from 1 January 2023 have lherefore been
adopted do not have a significant impact on the Company'’s financial results or position.

3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted early by the Company

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, several new, but not yet effeclive, Standards and

amendments to existing Standards, and Interpretations have been published by the IASB or IFRIC. Nane of

lhese Slandards or amendmenls to exisling Standards have been adopted early by the Company and no

Interpretalions have been issued that are applicable and need to be taken into consideralion by the Company

at either reporling date.

Management anticipales that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period beginning on or
after the effective date of the pronouncement. New Standards, amendments and interprelations not adopted
in the current year have not been disclosed as they are nol expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements.




Phoenix Power Company SAOG

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

4 Summary of material accounting policies

41 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standard {IFRS) and the requirements of the Commaercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, 2019,
as amended and the Capital Market Authorily.

ltemns included in the financial statements of the Company are measured and presented in US Dollars (USD)
being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operales.

These financial statements are presented in United States Dallars (“USD"), which is the Campany's functional
currency, and also in Rial Omani (*RO") for local regulatory requirements. The Omani Rial amounts, which
are presented in these financial statements are for the convenience of the reader and have been translated
from the USD amounts at an exchange rate of USD 1 = RO 0.3845. All amounts have been rounded to the
nearast thousand (RO ‘000 and USD '000) except where otherwise stated.

4.2 Climate related matters

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has nol identified significant risks induced by climate changes thal
could negatively and malerially affect the Company's financial statemenls. Management continuously
assesses the impact of climate-related matters.

Assumptions could change in the future in response to forthcoming environmental regulations, new
commitments taken and changing consumar demand. These changes, if not anticipated, could have an
impact on the Company's fulure cash flows, financial performance and financial pasition

4.3 Basls of measurement
The financial slatements are prepared under the historical cosl convention madified fo include the
measurement at {air value of derivative financial instruments.

The material accounling policies set out below have been applied consistenlly by the Company to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

4.4 Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is contracl that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
On initial recogniton, a financial assel is classified as measured at amortised cost, fair value thraugh other
comprehensive income (FVOCI), and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of debt financial assels at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual
cash flow characterislics and the Company’s business madel for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables lhat do not cantain a significant financing component, the Caompany initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
cosls. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing companent or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or (air value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI), it needs lo give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPIY on the principal amount cutstanding. This assessmenl is referred lo as the SPPI( test and is
perdormed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.




Phoenix Power Company SAOG
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

4 Summary of material accounting policies {continued)

44 Financial Instruments {continuad)
FInancial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement {continued)

The Company's businass model for managing financial assels refers to how it manages its financial assels in
order to genarale cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will resuit from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contraclual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured al fair value through OCl are held
within a business madel with the cbjective of both halding 1o collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits 1o purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
Purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in four categories:

» Financial assets al amortised cost (debt instruments)

- Financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive incoma (FVOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

« Financial assets designated at FVOCH with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upan
derecognition (equity instruments)

« Financial assets at fair value through prolit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assels at amortised cost
This category is the most relevant lo the Company. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meels
bath of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

= Itis held within a business model whose objeclive is to hold assets lo collect contractual cash flows;
and

* Its contraclual lerms give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outsianding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective inlerest rate (EIR} method
and are subject to imparment. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised. madified or impaired

Derecognition
A financial assel (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset ar part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised when:

a) The nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

b) The Company has transferred ils righls to receive cash flows {rom the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 1o a third parly under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either {(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, or (b)
has neilher transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred contral of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assel (or the carying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration received
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income is recognised in the profit or loss
account,
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44 Financial Instruments (continued)

When the Company has translerred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered inlo a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluales if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nar retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor

transferred control of the asset, the Company canlinues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company's continuing Involvement. In thal case. the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis thal reflects the rights and obtigations
that the Company has retained.

Conlinuing involvement that takes the form of a guaraniee aver the transferred asset is measured at lhe
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required {o repay.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company recagnises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured al amortised cost.

Measurement of loss allowances

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the coniractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all lhe cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or olher credit enhancements lhat are inlegral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since inilial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected aver the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a fifetime ECL).

The Company determines the amount of expected credit losses by evaluating the range of possible oulcomes
as well as incorporating the time value of money. These expected losses are discounted to the reporting date
using the effective inleres! rate of the asset {(or an approximalion thereof} that was determined at initial
recognition.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
Financial assets that are nal credit-impéired at the reporting date

Measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due lo the
Company in accordance with 1he contract and the cash flows that the Company expects (o receive).

Financial assels that are credit-impaired at the reporting date

Measured as the difference between the gross carmying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset's ariginal effective inlerest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in
the profit or loss account as an impairment gain or loss

Presentation of expected cradit losses
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assels and is charged to the statement of profil or loss and other comprehensive income.

Initial recognition and measurement
The Company's financial liabilities include interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables
and derivative financial inslruments
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4 Summary of material accounting policies {continued)
4.4 Flnancial Instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the Company designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing foans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effeclive Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cosl is calculaled by taking inlo account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosls
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorlisalion is included as finance cosls in the slatement of
profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing foans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
axpiras. When an exisling financial liability is replaced by another fram the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exisling liability are substantially madified, such an exchange or
madification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounls is recognised in the slatement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the nel amoun presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enfarceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to setltle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Wreite - off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that lhere is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines Ihat the debtor
does not have assels or sources of income lhai could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subjecl to the write-off. However, financial assels that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its risks associated with interest rate, foreign
currency, commodily prce fluctuations and also to satisfy the requirements of its customers. Derivalive
financial instrumentis are initially recognised at fair value on the dale on which a derivative conlract is sntered
inlo and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are camied as assels when the fair value is
pasitive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives thal do nol qualify for hedge accounting
are taken directly to the profit or loss account.

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company applies hedge accounting only if all of the following condilions are
met:

+  There is "an economic relationship’ betwaen the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

. The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes' that result from that economic
relationship; and

+  The hedge ratio of the hedging relalionship is the same as thal resulting from {he quantity of hedged
item that the entlity actually hedges and the quanlity of the hedging instrument that the enlily actually
uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.
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4.4 Financial Instruments (continued)

Derlvative financlal instruments and hedging (continued)
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedge is classified as hedges of highly probable future cash flows
attributable to a recognised assel or liability, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge).

Al the inceplion of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents lhe hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objeclive and
stralegy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, lhe
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging
instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged ilem’s fair value or cash flows
atiributable to the hedged risk. The documentation also includes the hedge ratio and potential sources of
ineffectiveness.

Hedges which meel the strict criteria for hedge accounting is accounted for as follows:
Cash flow hedge

The effeclive portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives thal are designated and qualify as cash low
hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective partion is recognised immediately
in the profit or loss account,

Amaunts recognised as OCI are transferred to the profit or loss account when the hedged transaclion affects
the profit or foss account, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or
when a foracast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or nan-financial
liability, ihe amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial
assel or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accaunting, any cumulalive gain or loss exisling in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaclion is ultimately recognised in the profit or loss account. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is
immediately transferred to the profit or loss account.

The Company has entered into derivalive financial instrument to manage its exposura to inlerest rate risk,
which include interest rate swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 21.

4.5 Revenue

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflecls the consideration o which an enlity expects o be entilled in
exchange for transferring goods aor services to a customer. The standard establishes a five step model to
account for revenue arising from coniracts with customers. The Company's contract with its sole customer
contains a lease, which is scopad out of IFRS 15. The Company recognised revenue in accardance with PPA
as defined in Note 1 of the financial statements. The contract consists of two revenue sireams, which are:

« Capacity charges
« Variable charges (i.e. Energy and fuel charges)

Capacity charges - IFRS 16

Capacity charges include investment charge and fixed O&M charge. Investment charge is treated as revenue
under operaling lease and recagnised on straight line basis over the lease lerm or ancther systemalic basis
which is more represenlative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying asset is
diminished. Fixed O&M charge is recognised based on the capacity made available in accordance wilh
contractual terms slipulated in PPA.

Variable charges - IFRS 15

Variable charges (i.e. Energy and fuel charges) are recognised when elactrical energy is delivered and
control of electrical energy have been fransferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect ihe customer’s acceptance of the electrical energy delivered.
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4 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

4.5 Revanue (continued)

Variable charges - IFRS 15 (continued)

The Company has a long-term agreament with OPWP which determines parformance obligalion, transaction
price and allocales the transaction price to each of the separate performance abligations. Accumulaled
experience is used lo estimate and provide for the discounts, using the expecled value method, and revenue
is only recognised to the extent thal it is highly prabable that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for time value of money as the period between
the transfer of the promised goods or services lo the customer and payment by the customer does not
exceed one year and the sales are made wilh agreed credil terms which is in line with the industry practice.

4.6 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisilion, canstruclion ar producticn of an asset that necessarily
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as par of the cost of
the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

4.7 Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised
in the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in olher comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations 1o, or claim from, Tax Authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on
laxabte profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financial siatements. Calculation of current tax is based
on 1ax rates and tax laws that have been enacled or subslantively enacted by the end of the reporling period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between lhe carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabililies are calcuiated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply
{o their respeclive period of realisalion, provided they are enacted or subslanlively enacled by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax liabilities are always provided for in full.

Deferred lax assels are recognised to the extent lhat it is probable that they will be able to be utilised against
future taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the Company has a right and intention 1o set off
current tax assets and liabilities from the same Tax Authority.

438 Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
lasses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

The cost of seff-construcled assets includes Lhe cost of materials, direct l[abour and any other costs directly
altributable lo bringing the assets to a working condilion for their intended use, the cosls of dismanlling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognilion of the asset (calculated as lhe difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit ar loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocale the cost less ils residual value so as to
wrile off items of property. plant and equipment over their estimaled useful lives. Each part of an item of
property, plant and equipment with a cost that Is significant in relation to the total cost of an item is
depreciated separately
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4 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
4.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued}
The following useful lives are applied:

Years
Building 40
Plant and machinery 40
Strategic spares 15
Olher assets 5

Where the carrying amounl of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount it is writlen down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, planl and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amounis and are taken into account in determining operating profit.

The assels' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewsd at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if applicable.

4.9 Inventories

Inventaries comprises of fuel and stores and spares which are stated at the lower of cast and net realisable
value. Costs comprise purchase cost, and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those aovarheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Obsolete inventory items are written down to their estimated net realizable
value.

410 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the presentation currency of the Company, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions {spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-measurement of monetary items,
denominated in foreign currency at year end exchange rate, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income under ‘Other income’ or ‘Other expenses'.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at the period-end. They are measured at histarical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured al fair value
which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

4.11 Dividend

The Board of Direclors takes into account appropriate parameters including the requirements of the Capital
Market Authority while recommending the dividend. The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend
when it is approved by the shareholders. A coresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

412  Asset retirement obligation

The provision for asset retirament obligation arose on assets constructed on land under usufruct contracls
with Public Establishment for Industrial Estale. A corresponding asset is recognised in property, plant and
aquipment. The asset ratirement obligation is provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation using estimaled cash flows. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre tax rate that reflecls the
risks specific to lhe asset retirement obligation. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and
recognised as a finance cost. The estimated future cosls of decommissioning are reviewed annually and
adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future cosis or in the discount rate applied are added to or
deducted from the cost of the asset.

413  Provisions, contingent liabiiities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when present obligalions will probably lead to an outflow of economic resources
from the Company and they can be estimaled reliably. Timing or amcunt of the outiflow may still be uncertain,

A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or consiructive commilment thal has resulted from
past events, for example, legal disputes or onerous contracls. Restrucluring provisions are recognised only if
a detailed farmal plan for the restructuring has been developed and implemented, or management have at
least announced the plan’'s main features to those affected by it. Provisions are not recognised for future
operaling losses.
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4 Summary of material acccunting policles (continued)

413 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present abligation, based on the
mosi reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainlies associated with
the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihocod that an outflow will be
required in setlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Long term provisions
are discaunted to their present values, where tha time value of money is material

Any reimbursement that can be virtually certain to collect from a third parly with respect to lhe obligation is
recognised as a separata asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporling date and adjusted ta reflect the current best estimate of the
Company's management. In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of
present obligations is considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognised.

Probable inflows of economic bensfits to the Company that do nol yet meet the recognition criteria of an
asset are considered cantingent assets.

414 Employees' end of service henefits

The provision for smployee's terminal benefits is based upon the liability accrued in accordance with the
terms of employment of the Company's employees alt ihe reporting date, having regard to the requirements of
Ihe Oman Labor Law, 2023, the Saocial Securily Law, 1931 and Royal Decree No 53/2023.

Government of Oman Soclal Insurance Scheme (the “Scheme")

The Company contributes to lhe Scheme for all Omani employees. The Scheme, which is a defined
contributions retirement plan, is administered by the Government of Oman. The Company and Omani
employees are required (o0 make monthly coniributions to the Scheme.

Non-Omanl employee terminal benefits

The provisian for employee’s lerminal benefits for non-Omani employees is made in accordance wilh the
requirements of the Oman Labor Law, 2023 and Royal Decree No. 53/2023. Employees are entitled to end of
service benefits calculated at the rate of 30 days basic salary for each of the years of continuous service.
This is an unfunded defined benefits retirement plan. Accrued non-Omani staff lerminal benefits are payable
on terminalion of employment.

415 Leases

The Company assesses at contract incepton whether a contract is, or conlains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognilion and measuremenl approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leasas of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lsase paymenls
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assels.

a) Right of use assets

The Company recognises right of use assels at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right of use assels are measured at cosl, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right
of use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. The recognised
right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term. Righl-of-use assels are subjecl fo impairment. Material residual value estimates and useful life
eslimates are updated as raquired. but at least annually.
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4 Summary of material accounting policles (continued)
4.15 Leases (continued}

a) Right of use assets {continued)

The cost of right of use assels includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease paymenls made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received unless
the Company is reasonably certain to abtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, lhe
recognised right of use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of ils eslimated useful
life and the lease term, as follows

Years
Land 35
Connection equipment 35
Office 5

b) Lease liabilities

Al the commencement dale of lhe lease, lhe Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments lo be made over the lease lerm. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable. variable lease payments that
depend an an index or a rate, and amounts expected lo be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and paymenis of penalties for lerminating a lease, if the lease lerm reflects the Company
exercising the oplion to terminale. The variable lease payments that da not depend on an index or a rale, are
recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs

in calculaling the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
tease commencement dale if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencemenl dale, the amount of lease liabililies is increased to reflect the accretion of inlerest and
reduced for the lease payments made In addition. the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease ferm. a change in the lease payments (e.g.. a change in future
payments resulting from a change in index or rate used to determine such lease payment) or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

c) Short-term leases and leases ol low-value assets

The Company applies the shori-lerm lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement dale and do not conlain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assels recognition exemplion ta leases lhat are considered to
be low value. Lease paymenits on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a siraight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leasas in which lhe Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental lo ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease lerms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or lass due lo ils operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negoliating and arranging an operating fease are added lo the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease lerm on the same basis as rental income. Contingent renis
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

4.16 Fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants al the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the assat or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the prncipal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in lhe most advantageous market for the asset or liabilily The
principal or the mast advanlageous market must be accessible lo by the Company.
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4.16  Fair values {continued)
The fair value af an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liabilily, assuming that markel participants act in their economic best! interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset lakes into accounl a market participant's ability o generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highesl and besl use or by seiling it lo anolher market parlicipant
that would use {he asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation lechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

The fair value of inlerest-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using interest sales for
items with simifar terms and risk characteristics. The falr value of unquoted derivatives is determined by
reference to broker/dealer price.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in ihe financial statements ares
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Leve! 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markels far identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observabie.

Level 3 - Valuation t{echniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable quotations.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have accurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period

417 Segment information

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intermnal reparting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chiefl operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing perfarmance of the operating segments, has been identified as the strategic decisions maker.

The Company's operakng aclivities are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements. The strategic
business unit offers similar products and sarvices and is managed as one segment. For the sirategic
business unit, the Chief Executive Officer reviews intemal management reports on a monthly basis.

Performance is measured based on the profit before income tax. as included in the internal management
reports. The Chief Executive Officer considers the business of the Company as ane operating segment and
monilors accordingly. The Company has only one segment in accordance with IFRS 8. Segment information
is, accordingly, presented in respect of the Company's business segments. The primary format, business
segments, is based on the Company's management and internal reporting structure. All operalion and
revanue are generaled and all non-current asset are situated in Sultanale of Oman.
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4.18 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presenis assets and liabilities in stalement of financial position based on cument/non-current
classificatian.

An asset as current when it is:
+ Expecled to be realised or intended {0 be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle,
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
« Expected to be realised wilhin twelve months afler the reporling period; or
= Cash or cash equivaleni unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twetve months alter the reparting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabilily is current when:
« it is expected to be settled in normal operaling cycle:
» It is held primarity for the purpose of trading;
« Itis due to be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
« There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve menths after
the reporling period.

The Company classifies all olher liabilities as nan-current.

4.19 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporling date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing lor an asset is required, the Company
estimates the assel's recoverable amounl. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's or cash
generating unit's (CGU) [air value less cosls of disposal and its value in use The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual assel, unless the asset does nol generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assels or groups of assets. When the carrying amount cof an asset or CGU
axceeds ils recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to ils racoverable

In assessing value in use. the estimated [future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of maney and the risks specific to
lhe asset. In determining fair value less cosls of disposal, recent market iransactions are taken into account.
if no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators

Impairment calculation of the Company is based on most recent budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separalely for each of the Company’'s CGUs to which the individual assets are alfocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of prafit or loss and other comprehensive income in
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

4.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, cash at bank and short-term deposils with an ariginal maturity of
three months or less.

4.21 Significant management Judgement in applylng accounting policies and estimation
When preparing the financial slatements. management makes a number of judgements, estimales and
assumplions about the recognilion and measurement of assels, fiabilities, income and expenses.

Significant management judgments
The following are the judgemenls made by management in applying the accounting policies of the Company
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.
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4 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

4.21 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation
uncertainty {(continued)

Significant management judgments

Classification of power plant as operating lease

The Company has entered into the Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA’) with Oman Power and Water
Procurement Company SAOC ("OPWP") lo generate eleclricity and make available the power capacity from
its Plant.

Management believes that IFRIC 12 is nol applicable to the arrangement as the residual interest is controlled
by the Company and not OPWP. The estimated useful life of the power plant of 40 years takes into account.
Furthermore, ihe residual value of the assets wilt have substantial value at the conclusion of the PPA and the
Company will be able to continue to generate revenue through supply of power taking into account the spat
market for power sector.

Management considers the requirements of IFRS 16 Leases, which sets out guidelines to determine when an
arrangement might contain a lease. The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date whether fulfiiment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific assetl or assels and the arrangement canveys a right lo use the asset.

Once a determination is reached that an arrangement contains a lease, lhe lsase arrangement is classified
as either financing or operating according to the principles in IFRS 16 Leases. A lease that conveys the
majority of the risks and rewards of operation is a finance lease. A lease other than a finance lease is an
operaling lease

Based on management's evaluation, the PPA wilh OPWP is considered as a lease wilhin the context of IFRS
16 Leases and has been classified as an operating lease under IFRS 16 Leases since significant risks and
rewards associated with the ownership of the plant lies with the Company and nat with OPWP.

Based on management assessment, there is no indicator of impairment of plant as at the reporting date

Estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions thal may have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assels, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual resulls may be
substantialty different.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate - Leases

The Campany cannol readily determine the inlerest rale implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) {0 measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of inlerest that the Company would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar econamic environment. The IBR therelore reflects what the
Company ‘would have lo pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when
they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimales lhe IBR
using observable inpuls {such as market interest rates) when available and is required (o make certain entity-
specific estimates.
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4 Summary of material accounting policies {(continued)

4.21 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation
uncertainty (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respeci to lhe interpretation of tax regulations and the amount and timing of (uture
taxable income. Given lhe wide range of business relalionships and nature of existing contractual
agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments lo tax income and expense already recorded.

The Campany eslablishes provisions, based on reasanable eslimates, for possible consequences of
finalization of tax assessments af the Campany. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax requlations by the taxable
anlity and the responsible lax authority.

Going concern

The Company's managemeni has made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern and is salisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on
the expected usage of the assets. At 31 December 2023, management assesses that, the useful lives
represent the expected usage of the assets 1o the Company. The uselful lives are menlioned in Note 4.8

Inventories

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, laking into account the mast reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The fulure realisation of lhese inventarias may be affected by
future evenls or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

Asset retirement obligation

Site restoralion costs are based on technical assessment of the probable fulure costs to be incurred in
respect of the decommissioning of the ptant facilities. The significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is
the cost that will be incurred and the applicable discount rate. Il has been assumed that the site will be
restored using technology and material that are currently avaitable. The expected cost of decommissioning
has been determined on the basis of a study by an independent contraclor and discounted over 40 years
using risk free adjusled discount rate.

Impalrment of plant

The carrying amounts of the Company's plant is reviewed at each reporling date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. When making the impairment assessment, the management has taken into
account both intemal and external factars including recent economic and regutatory development in the
Sultanate of Oman.
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5 Revenue

Revenue from lease contract:

Capacity charges

Revenue from cantract with a customer:
Energy and fuel charges

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 usD’'000 RO'000 UsD000
67,906 176,608 67,360 175,188
90,584 235,591 81,799 212.741
158,490 41 2!199 149,158 387,929

The Company operates in one business segment, that of generation of power. No geographical analysis has been
disclosed as 100% of the Company's revenue is from its only customer Oman Power and Water Procurement
Company SAOC {OPWP) based in lhe Sultanate of Oman.

6 QOperating costs

Gas consumption

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
(Note 11)

Operation and maintenance cosls (Note 28)
Contraciual sarvices maintenance cosis
Insurance

Dapreciation on right-of-use assets (Note 12)
Connectian, license fee and others

Year ended Year endad Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Dacember 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'000 UsD'000 RO000 USD'000
86,660 225,383 78,463 204,065
15,860 41,249 15,860 41,249
8,234 21,414 8,342 21,685
7.768 20,202 6,998 18,200

asa 2,236 1,189 3,092

253 657 253 657

182 472 g7 251
119,816 311,613 111,202 289,209

Operalion and maintenance costs includes (he cost of inventories amounting to USD 1.1 million (RO 0.42 million} [2022

USD 1.46 million (RO 0.56 million).

7 General and administrative expanses

Staff costs and olher benefits

Legal and professional charges

Listing expenses

Office related expenses

Carporate social responsib: lity

Short term lease rental

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
{Note 11)

Depraciation an right of use assets (Note 12}
Other expenses

Year ended Yaar ended Year ended Year ended
31 Dacember 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO’000 USo'o000 RO'G00 UsDooa
71 2,005 631 1,642
161 420 178 463
143 370 137 357
136 355 135 352
50 130 30 78
14 37 30 77
15 as 5 14
11 29 - =
165 429 110 286
1,466 3813 1,256 3.269
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8 Finance costs

Interest on term loans and swap seltlements
Amoriisalion of transaction costs (Nole 20)
Asset retirement obligation - unwinding of
discount (Nole 22)

Interest on lease liabililies (Note 25)

Debt service commission

Exchange loss

9 Income tax

Deferred tax expense recognised in the
stalement of prafit or loss
Income tax expense

Deferred tax expense reccgnised in other
comprehansive income

Year ended Year endad Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'0G0 usD'000 RO000 uso'600
10,895 28,336 12,041 31,317
613 1,597 711 1,848
256 666 244 634
392 1,019 401 1.042
58 155 124 322
85 248 - -
12,309 32,021 13.521 35,163
Year ended Year anded Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Dacember 31 December 31 Dacember
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO’000 UsD'000 RO'000 Uso000
{3,472) {9,030) (3,065) (7.972)
{403) {1,048) - -
{3,875) {10.078) {3.065) (7,972
30 79 {3.638) {9,461)

For the purpose of determining the taxable resuilts for the year, the accounling profil has been adjusted (or lax
purposes. Adjustments for tax purposes include items relating to both income and expense. The adjusiments are based
on the current undarstanding of the existing tax laws, regulations and practices. The adjustments to accounting prolt
for the year has resulled in a taxable profit which is adjusted against the brought forward tax losses.

a) Reconciliation of income tax expense

The lollowing Is a reconciliation of income tax on the accounling profit with the tax expenses at the applicable tax of

15% (2022:15%):

Profit before income tax

Net effect of expenses that are not deduclible
and income not considered tc be taxable in
determining taxable profit:

Accumulated losses
Net taxable income/{loss)

Current tax is provided al the rate of 15%.

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO000 usp’'o0o RO'000 uso000
25,798 67,088 23,427 50,931
(4,993) (12,986) (8.648) {22,491)
(18.115) (47,113) (14,779) (38.440)
2,690 6,989 - =
403 1,048 B .
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9 Income tax {continuad)

a} Recaonciliation of income tax expense (continued)
As of Decamber 2023, lhe Company’s tax assessments for 2020 have been compleled by lhe Omani Taxalion
Autharities. The Company’s assessmenl for the lax years 2021 and 2022 have not yet been inalised with the Taxation
Authority. Managementi believes that addilional 1axes, if any, in respecl of open ax years, wauld nat be significant 1o the

Company's financial position as at 33 December 2023.

b) Oeferred tax assels/liabilities)

31 December 2023

Property, plant and equipment

Provision far asset retirement obligation

Lease liabilities

Losses carried farward

Exchange loss

Fair value adjustiment of derivalives through
equity (Note 21)

Nel delerred lax #iabililies

Property, plant and equipment

Provision for assel retirement obligation

Lease liabilities

Losses carried farward

Exchange loss

Fair value adjustment of derivalives through
equily (Note 21)

Net deferred tax liabilities

31 December 2022

Property. plant and equipment

Provision for asset retiremenl obl gation

Lease liabilities

Losses carried forward

Exchange lass

Fair value adjustment of derivatives through
equity (Note 21)

Net deferred tax liabilities

Proparty, plant and equipment

Provision for asset retirement obligation

Lease liabilites

Losses camied forward

Exchange loss

Fa:rr value adjustment of derivalives lhrough
equity (Note 21)

Net deferred tax liabilities

Recognised in
Recognised other

At In profitor comprehensive At

1 Januvary loss Income 31 December
ROG00 RO000 RO'000 RO'000
(47.641) (840) - (48,481)
809 52 - 861
1,380 20 - 1,400
2,717 {2,17) - -

28 13 - 41

359 - 30 389
{42,348) {3,472 30 (45,790)
usp'ooo uspD'e00 UsD'000 USD'Do0
(123,905) (2.185) - {126,090)
2,105 136 - 2,241
3,588 51 B 3,639
7.067 {7.067) - .
72 35 - 107

935 - 79 1.014
(110!1352 (9!030! 79 {1135089!
RO'000 RO000 RO000 RO'000
(46,260) (1.381) - (47.641)
759 50 - 809
1,354 26 - 1,380
4,485 {1.768) - 2,717
20 a8 - 28
3.997 - (3,638) 359
{35.645) {3,065} {3,638) (42,348)
usb'aoo USD000 uso'000 UsD'009
{120,313) (3,592) - (123,905)
1974 131 - 2,105
3.521 67 - 3,588
11,665 (4,598) - 7,067
52 20 - 72
10.396 - (9,461} 935
{92,705} (7.972) {9.461) (110,138}
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10 Basic and dlluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year,

31 December 31 December 31 Dscember 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RQ'000 usD’oao RO000 usn0o0

Protit for the year 21,923 57,010 20,362 52.959
Weighled average number of shares (in

000's} 1,462,601 1,462,601 1.462,601 1,462,601

Basic eamnings per share (Baisas / Cents) 0.015 0.039 0.014 0.03%

No figure for diluled eamings per share has been disclosed as the Company has not issued any instruments which would
have an impact an eamnings per share when exercised.

1 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Strategic Asset Other
Building  equipment spares retirement assels Total

RO000 ROD0O0 RO000 RQ'G00 RQ000 RO000
Cost
At 1 January 2023 83,876 518,087 10,809 3,249 251 616,272
Addilion - - - - 72 72
Disposal - - : B {27) 27)
At 31 December 2023 81,876 518,087 10,808 3,249 296 616,317
Accumulated deprecialion
At 1 January 2023 16,897 104,358 5.810 806 235 128,106
Charge for the year 2,095 12,954 721 a0 15 15,875
Disposal - - = - {27) {27)
At 31 December 2023 18,992 117,312 6,531 896 223 143,954
Nel book value
At 31 December 2023 64!834 400!775 4,278 2,353 73 4725363

Plant end Strategic Asset

Building equipment spares retirement  Other assets Total

RO'000 RO'000 RO00C RO'000 RO'000 RQ'000
Cost
Al 1 January 2022 83,876 518.087 10.809 3,249 246 616,267
Addilion . . . - 14 14
Disposal - - - - (8) (9)
Al 31 December 2022 83.876 518.087 10.809 3.249 251 616,272
Accumulated dapreciation
At 1 January 2022 14.800 91,406 5.089 716 238 112,250
Charge for the year 2.097 12,852 21 90 5 15,865
Disposal - - - - (9 {8)
Al 31 December 2022 16.897 104,358 5.810 806 235 128,106
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 66,979 413.729 4,999 2,443 16 488.166
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Plant and Strategic Asset Other
Building equipment spares retirement assels Total
UsD'000 UsD'0oo UsSD0a0 UsD'000 uso-ooo uso'ooo
Cost
At t January 2023 218,142 1,347,432 28,113 8.450 648 1.602,785
Addilion . . - - 183 183
Disposal - - - - {70) {70)
At 31 Dacember 2023 218,142 1,347,432 28,113 8450 761 1,602,898
Accumulated depreciation
Al 1 January 2023 43,942 271,418 15.102 2.101 610 333.173
Charge far the year 5,454 33,686 1.874 235 8 41.287
Disposal - - - - (70} (70)
At 31 December 2023 49,396 305,104 16.976 2,336 578 374,390
Net book value
At 31 December 2023 168,746 1,042,328 11,137 6.114 183 1,228,508
Plant and Strategic Asse!l
Building equipment spares ratirement  Other assetls Totai
uso'eo0 USD'000 UsD 000 UsD'000 USo'000 Uspooo
Cost
Al 1 January 2022 218,142 1,347,432 28,113 8.450 637 1.602,774
Addition - - - . 35 35
Disposal - - - - (24) {24}
Al 31 December 2022 218.142 1,347,432 28,113 8.450 648 1,602,785
Accumulated deprecialion
At 1 January 2022 38,489 237,732 13.227 1.866 620 291.934
Charge for the year 5453 33.686 1.875 235 14 41,263
Disposal s - - = (24) (24)
At 31 December 2022 43.942 271.418 15.102 2,101 510 333.173
Net boak value
Al 31 December 2022 174,200 1.076.014 13.011 6,349 38 1,269,612
Depreclation charged for the year is aliocated as follows:
Year ended Year ended  Yearended = Year ended
31 December 37 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO’000 UspD'000 RO000 UsD000
Operating costs (Note 6) 15,860 41,249 15,860 41,249
General and adminisirative expenses (Note 7) 15 38 5 14
15,875 41,287 15.865 41.263

The Company's bullding and plant are constructed on land leased from Sur Indusirial City (PEIE) {Notas 2 and 25).

The term loan facitt-es are secured by a camprehensive legal and commercral morigages aon all assels of the Company

{Note 26}.

Based on management assessment, there is no indication of impairment of property, plant and equipment,
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12  Right-of-use assets

The land on which the plant and buildings are construcied has been leased from Sohar Industrial port Company SAQC for
a period of 25 years. The Company has also acquired connection equipment an lease from Oman Electricity
Transmission Company SAOC for lhe lransmissian through the syslem lo the conneclion point for a period of 15 years.

31 D wber 31D ber 31 December 371 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 UsD'000 ROG00 UsD'000
Cost:
At 1 January 8.809 22,911 8,809 22,911
Addition during the year 102 264 - -
At 31 December 8,919 23,175 8.809 22,911
Accumuliated depreciatlon:
At 1 January 1,009 2,623 756 1,966
Charge Jor the year 264 686 253 657
At 31 Decamber 1,273 3,309 1.009 2,623
Net book valua:
At 31 December 7,638 19,866 7.800 20.288

Depreciation on right-of use-assets charged for Ihe year is allocaled as follows
Year ended Year ended  Year endad Year ended
310 b 31D ber 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RGC’000 USD'000 RO000 uso'ooo

Operaling costs (Note B) 253 657 253 657
General and administrative expenses (Naote 7) 11 29 - -
264 686 253 657

13  Trade and other recelvables
21 December 31 Dacombear 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'GO0 uso'ooe ROTO0 UsD000

Trade raceivables 8,178 21,270 7.166 18,636

Prepayments kIR 970 328 854

Other receivables 200 519 439 1,141
Bfs1 _ 7a7se 7833 _ J0SAT

All amounls are short-term. The net carrying value of trade and olher receivables is considered a reascnable
approximation of fair value.

Note 30(b) includes disclosures relating to the credit risk exposures and analysis relating to the allowance for expected
credit losses.

14 Inventories
310 b 310D ber 31 December 371 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 UsD'000 RO'000 usD0o0

Fuel 5,497 14,297 5,433 14,130
Slores and spares 5,917 15,390 5.932 15,423
11,414 29,687 11,365 29,553

The management has assessed that as at 31 December 2023, lhere are no slow moving inventories for which provision is
required (2022: RQ Nil}.

28



Phoenix Power Company SAOG
Noles to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

15  Short term deposits
J1 December 31 December 37 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'000 UsSD'000 RO'000 usngoo
Short term deposits 7,306 19.000 - -

Short term deposits placed with reputable financial institution for a pericd ranging from six months lo one year carrying
interest at the rates ranging from 5% to 5.5% (2022 Nil) per annum. These will mature latest by 26 June 2024. Short term
deposils are placed with reputed financial institulions. Hence, the management bel aves thal the ECL 's immalerial to the
financial stalemants as a whale.

16  Cash and cash equlvalents
31 December 31 Dacember 31 Decembar 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 uso’000 RO000 UsD0oo

Cash in hand - 2 - -
Cash at bank 12,700 33,029 20,259 52,688
12,700 33,031 20.258 52,688

Cash at bank are placed with reputed financial inslitutions. Hence, the management believes that the ECL is immaterial to
the financial stalements as a whole Thare are no restrictions on cash at bank at the time of approval of (he financial
slatements,

17  Share capital
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
RO’'0D0 UsD’'o00 RO'000 UsD0oo
Authorised, issued and fully paid up share capila! of
1.462,601,460 shares (2023 and 2022 - 1,462,601,460
shares of RO 0.1 each) 146,260 380.3%0 146,260 380,290
= —T = = 1

18 Legal reserve

As per arlicle 132 of the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, 2019, as amended, annual
appropriations of 10% of the profit for the year are made lo this reserve untii the accumulated balance amounits 1o at least
one third of the value of paid-up share capital of the Campany This reserve is nol available for distribution. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, lhe Company iransferred USD 5.7 million (RO 2.2 million) [2022 USD 5.3 million (RO 2.0
miliion)] 1o the legal reserve,

19  Dividend payable

2023 2023 2022 2022
RQ'000 UsD'000 RO000 usoooo
Al 1 January 3,045 7,917 2413 6.276
Dividend proposed - 3.25 Baisas per share
{2022: 2.50 Baisas per share) 4,754 12,363 3.657 9,510
Dividend proposed - 2.0 Baisas per share
(2022: 2.00 Baisas per share) 2.925 7.608 2,925 7.608
7,679 19,971 6,582 17,118
Payments during the year (7,739) {20,280) (5,950) (15.477)
At 31 December 2,925 7,608 3.045 7917

Pursuant to sharehalders' resalution dated 20 March 23. the Board of Directors in their meetings held on 19 April 2023
and 24 Oclober 2023 appraved cash dividend of 3 25 Baisas per share and 2 0 Baisas per share, raspectively for the
year ended 31 December 2022. Accordingly. dividend amounting to USD 12.36 million (RO 4.75 million) was paid in July
2023 and USD 7.6 million (RO 2 92 mll.on}) is payable as of 31 December 2023 which was paid subsequently in January
2024.

Pursuant lo shareholders’ resolution daled 17 March 2022, the Board of Directors in their meetings held on 21 April 2022
and 28 October 2022 approved cash dividend of 2.50 Baisas per share and 2.0 Baisas per share, respeclively for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Accordingly, dividend amounting toe USD 15.5 million (RO 6 million) was paid in July 2022
and USD 7.60 million (RO 2 92 million) is payable as of 31 December 2022 which was pad during the year.

The Board of Directars at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting will propose a cash dividend, provided that the
aggregated amoun! of such dividend shall not exceed 5 25 Baisas per share.
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20 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
31 December 31 December 31 Decembsr 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'000 UsD'000 RO000 UsSD000
Term loans 185,779 483,171 220,033 572,257
Less; unamorlised transact:on cosls (1,477) {3,841) (2,090} {5,438}
184,302 47%,330 217,943 566,819
Less: current portion of loans (36,104) {93,899) {34,253) (89.085)
Non-current porion of loans 148,198 385,431 153!69{} 477,734

The movemenl in interest bearing loans and borowings at the reporting date is as below:
31 December 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'000 uUsD'0oo RO000 USD'000
At 1 January 220,033 572,257 251,733 654,701
Repayments of loan {34,254) (89,086} {31.700) (82.444)
At 31 Decamber 135!?}'9 483!111 220,033 572257

Movemenl of unamortised transaclion costs is as follows:
31D b 31D ber 37 December 31 December

2023 2023 2g22 2022

RO'000 UusD'000 RO000 USD'000

At 1 January 2,090 5,438 2,801 7.286
Amorised during the year (Note 8) (613) (1,597) (741) {1.848)

At 31 Dacember 1541'? 3,841 2,090 5438

The Company had entered into secured tong term loan agreemenits in relation to the Project, The lotal amount of the term
loan is USD 1,194 million (RO 459 million) at SOFR plus applicable margin,

The Company started drawdowns in 2012. The Company has fully drawn down the facility in 2014, The loans will be
repayable in six months instalments af several denominations. starled from 28 December 2014 till 28 Dacember 2028.
The Company in order lo manage its ‘nlerest rale risk has enlered into interesl rale swap arrangemenls, the details of
which are set outin Note 21.

The above (acifilies are secured by comprehensive legal and commercial mortgages an all the assels of the Company
(Note 11). The loan agreements contain cerlain rastrictive covenants, which include, amongst olher restrictions over debl
service, patlemn of shareholding, paymenl of dividends, assel sales/transfers, and amandment to significant agreements
entered by the Company and creation of additional security under charge. The Company is in compliance with the
covenants.

During the year company has successfully done transition from LIBOR to SOFR. The company do not foresee any impact
on the company far this transition.

21 Derlvative financial instruments
Derivalive financial instruments comprises ol interest rate swap agreemenis and currency swap agreements

Net movement in fair value of cash flow hedges is as folfow:
31 Decembar 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 uso'o00 RO000 usbDeoo

Interest rale swaps (2,129) (5,539) 5614 14,600
Currency swaps 1,926 5,010 18,639 48,477
(203) {529) 24 253 63,077

Deferred tax impact 30 79 (3.638) (9,461)
{173) (450) 20,615 53,616

(a) Interest rale swaps

In accordance with the requirements of ils Commercial facilities, NEX| facilties and Term Loan facilities agreement with
Japan Bank for International Corporation (“Secured Term Loan agreements”), the Company has entered into seven
inlerest rale hedging agreemenls with a view to cap the Company's exposure 1o fluctualing interest rates. The maximum
loan amounl covered during the terure ts USD 1,152 million (RO 443 million). Under the hedging agreemenis, lhe
Company pays 3 fixed inlerest rate between 3.102% to 3.75% per annum as per the respective swap agreemeni and
receives a floating interest rate based on USD Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) with effeclive dates starting
from 28 February 2013/28 March 2013 till 28 December 2028. As at 31 Decamber 2023, an unrealised gain of USD 9.06
mill:on (RO 3.48 million) [2022: Unrealised gain of USD 14.6 million {RQ 5.6 million)] relating to measuring lhe financtal
instrument at fair value is included in equity in respect of Ihese cantracts.
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21 Darlvatlve financlal instruments (continued)

(a) Interest rate swaps (continued)
All of these interest rate swaps are designaled as effective cash flow hedges and the fair value thereol has been deall
with in equity.

31 December 31 Dacembar 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'000 Uso'0op RO000 UsD000
Fair value of interest rate swaps 3,484 9,061 5614 14,600
Less: defesred tax effect (523) {1.359) (843) {2,191)
2,969 7,702 4771 12,409

The currant and non-current porlion of interes! rate swaps is as follows:
31 Dacembar 31 December 31 Dscember 31 Dscember
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'600D UsD'000 RO000 usDaoo
Nan-current portion 300 779 4,594 11,948
Current porlion 3,184 8,282 1.020 2,652
3.484 9,061 5614 14,600

The following table shows the fair value of interest rate swaps relating to secured term loan agreements, which is
aquivalent to the market values, together with the notional amaunts analysed by the term to maturity. The not:onal amount
is the amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, refarence rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in the value
of derivatives are measured.

31 Dacember 2023 Notional amounts by term to maturity

Fair value Mare than
of Notional Lass than Tupto5 Over 5
derivatives amount 1 year years years
Interest rate swaps (RO'000) 3,484 176,468 34!291 142,177 -
Inlerest rate swaps (USD'000) 9,061 458,355 89.183 369,772 =
31 December 2022 Nationat amounis by term to malurity
Fair value
of Notional Less than  More than 1 QOvar5
denrvatives amount 1ysar uplo§years years
Interest rate swaps {(RO'000) 5614 209,004 35.203 141.265 32,536
Interest rate swaps (USD'000) 14,600 543,574 91,556 367,399 B4,619

{b} Currency swaps

In order to reduce its exposure to foreign exchange rales fluctuations relaling lo payments to be made to conlractor for
services rendered under long term supply and services coniract for gas turbines, ihe Company has entered into a foreign
exchange swap agreement with a bank far the foreign exchange amounts which are required to be paid in future. As at 31
December 2023, an unrealised foss of USD 15.82 million (RO 6.08 million) (2022: USD 20.8 million {RO 8.0 million})
relating to measuring the {inancial instrument at fair valus is included in equity in respect of these contracts. The related
details are sal out below:

31 Decamber 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 Usp’o0o RO000 uso'ooo

Fair value of currency swaps {(6,083) {15,821) {8,009) (20,831)
Less; deferred tax effect 912 2,373 1.201 3.125
(5471 (13.,448) q'E.&GB! (17,7086)
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21 Derivative flnancial instruments {continued)

(b} Currency swaps {continued)
The current and non-current portion of currency swaps is as follows:

31 Decamber 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 USD'000 RO000 USD000

Naon-current portion (4,821} (12,540) (6,553) (17,042}
Current portion {1,262} {3,281) {1.456) (3.789)

{6,083) {15,821) (8,009) (20,831}

The following lable shows fair value of the currency swaps, which is equivalent to the markel values, togelher with the
national amounts analysed by the term to maturily. The notional amount is the amount of a derivative's underlying asset,
reference rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured.

31 December 2023 Notional amounts by term to maturity
Fair valua More than
of Notional Less than fupto$ Over
derivatives amount 1 year years 5 years
Currency swaps (RO'000) {6,083) {29,276) (5,870} (23,406) s
Currency swaps (USD'0D0} {15.821) {76,140} {15,267) {60.873) -
31 December 2022 Noalional amaunls by term to maturity
Mare than
Fair value of Notional Less than fuplo5 Over
derivatives amount 1 year years 5 years
Currency swaps (RO'000} (8,008) (35,126) (5.838) {23,438) {5.850)
Currency swaps (USD'000) (20,831) (91.355) {15,183) {60,957) (15,215)

22 Provision for asset ratiramant obligation

Under the Usufruct Agreement, the Company has a legal obligation to remove the plant at the end of its useful life and
restore the land. The Company shall at ils sole cost and expense dismanlle, demobilise, safeguard and transpont the
assels, eliminale soil and ground water contamination, fill all excavation and retum the surface o grade of the designaled
areas. The fair value of assel retirement obligation (ARO) provision has been caicutated using an expected present value
technique. This technique reflects assumptions such as costs, planl useful life, inflation and profit margin hat third parties
would consider to assume the seltfement of the obligation.

The movement in ARO provision is as follows:
31 December 31D ber 31 Decemb 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 UsoD'000 RO0G0 UsD'000

As at 1 January 5,120 13,317 4,876 12,683
Unwinding of discount {Nale 8) 256 666 244 634
As at 31 December 5376 13,983 5120 13317

32



Phoenix Power Company SAOG

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

23 Trade and other payables

31D b 31 Dacemb 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 usD'o0o RO000 usDvog

Trade payable 5,626 14,633 6,790 17,659
Amounts due lo a relaled party {Nole 28) 3,220 8,374 3,377 8,782
Accrued expenses 8,510 22,134 6,665 17,328
VAT payable 1,612 4,192 2,076 5,400
18,968 49,333 18.908 49 169

All amounts are short-lerm, The carrying values of trade and other payables are considered to be a reasonable

approximation of fair values.

24  Employees’ and of service benefits

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 usD'000 RO000 UsD000

At 1 January 32 83 47 122
Charge for the year 6 16 9 23
Payments during lhe year - - (24) (62)
At 31 December 38 %Bm 32 83

25 Lease llabilitles

The Company recognised lease fiabilities i relalion to lease of land and connection equipment. These liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate.

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 UsSD'600 RO000 USsoD000

Land 1,758 4,573 1,758 4573
Connection equipmenl 6,589 17,139 6,680 17,372
Office 55 141 - -
8,402 21,853 8.438 21,945

Movement in laase liabilities recagnised in the statemant of financral position is as lollows
31 December 31 Deceamber

31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 usD'000 RO000 usD000

At 1 January 8,438 21,945 8,518 22,155
Additions 102 264 - -
Interest expense {Note 8} 392 1,019 401 1,042
Payments during the year {530) {1,375) (481) {1.252)
At 31 December 8402 21,853 B8.438 21,945
31 Deceamber 371 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO’000 USD’'000 RO000 UsSD000

Nan-currenl 7,873 20,478 7,931 20,626
Current 529 1,375 507 1.319
8.402 21,853 8.438 21,945

The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive incame:!

Year andad Year ended
31 Dacember 31 December

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'G00 usp'ono RO'000 usoooo

Deprecalion on right-ol-use assets (Nate 12) 264 686 253 657
Interest on finance lease (Note 8) 392 4,019 401 1,042
656 1,705 654 1,699
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25  Leasa labilities (continued)

Lease payments not recognisaed as a liability

The Company has elecled not lo recognise lease liabilty for short term leases (leases with an expected term of 12
months or less) or for leases of low value assets Payments made under such leases are expensed on a siraight-line
basis.

The expense relaling to payments nal included in lhe measurement of the lsase liability is as follows:
Year ended Year ended  Year ended Year ended
31 Dacember 31 December 31 December 31 Dacember

2023 2023 2022 2022
RO’000 usD'000 RO000 UsD0eoo
Short term lease rental 14 37 30 7

26 Net assels per share
Net assels per shara is talculated by dividing the equity attributable to the sharehalders of the Company at the reporting

dale by the number of shares outstanding as follows:

31 Dacember 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
Net assels (RO'000s/USD'000s} 251,369 653,748 237,294 617.153
Number of shares outslanding at 31
December (in 060's} 1,462,601 1,462,601 1,462,601 1,462,601
Net assets per share (RO BAISAJUSD CENTS) 0.172 0.447 0.162 0.422

27 Contingencles
At 31 December 2023, the Company had no contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other
malters arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated Lhat no material liabiliies will arise {2022

USD Nil (RO Ni)].

28 Related party trar tlons and bal

Relaled parties comprisa the shareholders, direclors, key management personrel and business entities thal have the
ability to control or exercise significant influence aver financial and operaling decisions of the Company and entilies over
which cerlain shareholdars are able o exercise significant influence.

The Company mainlains balances wilh these retated parties which arise in the ncrmal course of business from the
commercial transactions, and are enlered inlo al terms and condilions agreed between lhe parties. Transactions with

related parties are as follows:
1D b 31 Decembar 3! December 371 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
Due to a related party RO000 usD’000 RO000 UsD000
Company under common control -
Phoenix Operation and Maintenance
Campany LLC {Nole 23) 3,220 8,374 3.377 8,782

Year ended Year ended  Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Daecember

Ralated parties transactions 2023 2023 2022 2022
RO'000 usD'000 RO000 UsD000

Cansulting service fee charged:
- Axia Power Holdings - shareholder 41 107 41 107
- JERA Co. inc. - shareholder 25 84 25 84
66 171 66 171

Operation and maintenance costs:
Phoenix Operation and Maintenance
Company LLC (Note &) 8,234 21,414 8.342 21695
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28 Related party transactions and balances (continued)

Related parties transactions (continued)

Year ended Year ended  Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
RO’000 USD’000 RO’000 USsD’'000

Key management compensation:
Short term benefits 249 647 200 520
End of service benefits P a 3 8
249 647 203 528

29 Commitments

Operation and maintenance (O&M) commitments

As per the O&M Agreement, Phoenix Operation and Maintenance Company LLC will operate and maintain the
Company's plant until 31 March 2029. Under the O&M agreement, the Company has to pay the fixed fee which is subject

to indexation based on Omani Price indices.

At 31 December, the expected future payments under the O&M Agreement (excluding indexation) are as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO’000 USD’'000 RO’000 USD’000

Within one year 1,730 4,500 1,730 4,500
Between two and five years 6,921 18,000 6,921 18,000
After five years 427 1,110 2,157 5,610
9.078 23,610 10,808 28,110

Other commitments

The Company has entered into agreements for purchase of natural gas with the Ministry of Energy and Minerals, long
term supply of spare parts of gas turbines with Siemens Aktiengesellschaft and maintenance service of gas turbines with
Siemens LLC Oman.

Operating lease agreement for which the Company acts as a lessor

The Company has entered into a PPA with OPWP in July 2011 for a substantial element of the production of power with
100% "take-or-pay" clauses in favour of the Company.

The Management has determined that the take-or-pay arrangement with OPWP under the PPA is subject to IFRS 16 -
Leases. The Management further determined that such an arrangement in substance represents an operating lease. The
lease commenced on 11 December 2014. The following is the total of minimum lease receipts expected to be received
under the PPA, excluding indexation:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31December

2023 2023 2022 2022
RO’000 UsD’000 RO'000 USD'000
Within one year 65,511 170,380 65,428 170,165
Between two and five years 196,286 510,496 196,286 510,496
After five years 72,935 189.689 138.447 360.069
334,732 870,565 400,161 1,040,730

30 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from;

»  Market risk
»  Credit risk
+ Liquidity risk
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30 Financial risk management (continued)

This nole preserts information about the Company's expasure to each of Ihe above risks, the Company’'s objectives,
polictes and precesses for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's managemeni of capital. Further quantitalive
disclosures are included throughoul lhese financial slalements The Company's overall risk managemenl program
focuses on the unprediclability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Campany's
financial performance. The Board of Direclors has averall respansibility for establishing and overseeing the Company's
nsk management framework., The Board has enlrusied the management with the responsibility of developing and
monitaning lhe Company's risk management palicies and procedures and its compliance with them.

(a)  Markat risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as fareign exchange rales, interest rales and equily prices will
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control markat risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the relumn

Intarest rate risk.

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interesi rates. The Company's exposure to the risk af changes in market interest rales retates primarily
to ihe Company’s long-term debt obligations with Roating intarest rates. To manage 1his, the Company enters into interest
rate swaps, in which the Company agrees tc exchange. al specified ‘ntervals, the difference belween fixad and variable
rale interest amounts calculated by reference lo an agreed-upon aotional principal amount. These swaps are designated
to hedge underlying debt obligations. The delails of Company's interest rate swap agreements are set out in Note 21,

A 10% change in US SOFR rates al the reporling date would have increased/{decreased) equily and statement of profil
or loss by the amounts of USD 68.4 thousands (RO 26 3 thousands) [2022: USD 28.0 thousands (RO 10.77 thousands)]
befora taking into account of interest rate swaps. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in parlicular foreign
currency rales, remain constant. The management do nat foresee any impact on the company related to transition from
LIBOR to SOFR.

Foreign currancy risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of an expasure will fluctuate because of changes in
loreign exchange rates. The Company's majority of foreign cumency lransactions are denominaled in US Qollar and Euro.
As the Rial Omani is pegged to the US Dollar the transactions are not expecled 1o have any significant currency risk. The
Company has entered inlo forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its Euro exchange risk ansing on certain
payments 1o be made in Euro as per its agreement with Siemens Akliengesellschaft. The details of which are set oul in
Note 21. The Company's certain Cash at bank are denominated in Euro. The Company's bank balance denominated in
Euro as of 31 December 2023 amounted to RO 0.385 thousands {USD 1 thousands ) [(2022: RO 2 thousands (USD 5
thousands)). Should the exchange rate between Euro and RO fluctuate by + 5%. the impact on the Company’s resuits will
be USD:Nil {RO:Nil) |2022: USD:Nit (RO:Nil)!.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company il a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument {ails to meeat
its contractual obligations. and arises principally from ihe Company's raceivables from customers and cash balances held
with banks OPWP is the Company’s sole customer and the Company analyses its credit risk with OPWP.

The Caompany (imits its credit nsk with reqard lo bank deposits by only dealing with reputable banks and financial
inshtutions.
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30 Fl tal risk g t {continuad)

(b}  Credit risk {continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets as foliows

31 Dacember 31 Decamber 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'060 UsD'000 RO'000 UsSDo00

Trade receivables {Nots 13) 8,178 21,270 7,166 18,636
Short term deposits (Note 15) 7,306 19,000 - -
Cash al bank (Note 18) 12,700 33,023 20,259 52,688
Other receivables 200 519 439 1,141
28,384 73!51 8 27.864 ?214165

Age analysis of trade receivables as at 31 December was:

31 December 31 December 31 Dacember 31 Dacember

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO'000 RO'000 RO000 RO000

Trade Expected Trade Expected

receivables credit losses  receivables  credit losses
Nol past due 8,178 - 7.166
Past due 0 < 3 months - - a
Past due > 3 months - - -

8178 - 7,166 -

Nominal value in USD '000 21,270 - 18.636 -

The table below shows the balances with banks categorized by short-lerm credil ratings as published by Moody' Service

at lhe reporting date:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
Description Ratings RQ'000D uUsSD'000 RO000 UsSDao0
Cash at bank Baz & A1 12,700 33,029 20,259 52,688

(¢)  Llquidity risk
Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company maintains sufficent and approved bank credit limits to meat ils abligations as they (all due for paymenl and
is therefore not subjecled ta significant liquidily risk. The {able below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's

financial liabilities based on contraclual undiscounted payments:

Less than 3012 Mare than

3 months months fto 5years 5 years Total
RO000 RO'000 RO000 ROCO0 RO'000

2023
Trade payable 5,626 - - - 5,626
Amounts due lo a relaled parly 3,220 u = - 3,220
Interest bearing loans and barrowings - 44,878 166,605 = 211,483
Leasa liabilities 529 - 2,099 13,162 15,790
Dividend payable 2,925 = . - 2,925
12,300 445878 168,704 13,162 239,044

Less than Jio 12 More than

3 months months 110 5 years §years Total
RO'000 RO000 RO0G0 RO'006 RQO000

2022
Trade payable 6,790 - - - 6,790
Amounls due 1o a related party 3377 . - - 3,377
Interesi bearing loans and borrowings - 44,720 173,030 38,453 256,203
Lease liabilties 507 - 2,029 13.669 16,205
Dividend payable 3.045 - . D 3.045
13,719 44,720 175,059 52,122 285,620
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30 Flnancial risk management (continued) ’

{c) Liquldity risk {continued)

Less than 3 Jto 12 More than
months months 1 (o 5 years 5 years Total
Usn000 UsD0oo usoa00 UsD800 Uso'ooo
2023
Trade and other payables 14,633 - - - 14,633
Amaunts due (o a relaled party 8,374 - - - 8,374
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 116,718 433,303 - §50,021
Lease liabilities 1.375 . 5458 34,231 41,064
Dividend payable 7.608 - . - 7.608
31,990 116,718 438,761 34,231 621,700
Less than 3 31012 More than §
months months 1to 5 years ysars Total
UsbDaoo UsD000 USD'000 USD000 usD'000
2022
Trade and other payables 40,387 - - - 40,387
Amounls due to a related party 8,782 - . ~ 8,782
Interest bearing foans and borrowings . 116,306 450,012 100,009 666,327
Leass liabililies 1,319 - 5278 35,551 42,148
Dividend payable 7.917 - - - 7.917
58,405 116.306 455.290 135,560 765,561

(d) Capital risk management

The Company aims o maintain a strong capilal base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain fulure development and growth of its businesses, while at lhe same time maintaining an appropriate dividend
policy to reward shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust tha capilal structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharaholdars, retum capilal to
sharehalders or issue new shares, No changes were made in the objeclives, policies or pracesses during the year ended
31 December 2023,

The Company monilors capital Lsing a gearing ratio, which is debt (inlerest bearing loans and borrowings) divided by total
equity.
31 Dacember 31 December 31 December 37 December

2023 2023 2022 2022

RO’000 UsD'000 RO000 usoDeoo

Debt (Interest bearing loans and borrowings - Note 20} 185,779 483,171 220,033 572.257
Less: Short lerm deposits (Nate 15) (7,306) {19,000) . -
Less: Cash and cash equivalenis (Note 16} {12,700) {33,031) {20,259} (52.688)
Net debt 165,773 431,140 199,774 519,569
Equity before hedging reserve 253,575 659,494 239,330 622,449
Nel Debt to equity ratio 65% 65% 83% 83%

3t Fair value of financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise of financial assels, financial liabilities and derivatives.

Financial assels consist of cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments). Financial
liabilities consist of interest beanrg loans and bamowings and lrade and olher payables {excluding VAT). Derivalives
consist of interest rate swap arrangemenis and forward foreign exchange currency contracts.

The fair values of financial instrumenis are nol materially different from their carrying values. The derivatives are fair
valued using level 2 lechnique wilh refererce to broker/dealer price quolation.

There were na transfers between level 1 and fevel 2 during the year.
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31 Fair value of financial Instruments (continued)
Measurement of fair values

Type Valuation technique

Derivative instrument {level 2} Markel comparison technique: fair value is calculated by the respective
financial institutions

Embedded derivatives
The following agreemenils contain embedded denvat.ves:

(a)  The PPA belween the Company and OPWP conlains embedded derivatives in ire pricing lormula that adjusts the
charge rates to reflect changes in USD / RO currency exchange ratas and changes in US price index and the
Oman price index.

(o) The O&M Agreement contains embedded denvatives in the pricing formula that adjust the payments to reflecl
changes in the relevant inflation indices.

Thess embedded derivatives are not separated from the host contract, the PPA and the O&M Agreement, and is nol
accounted for as a standalone derivalive. as lhe management believas that the economic characterislics and risks
associated with the embedded derivatives are closely relaled to those of the host centracls.

32 Financial assets and liabilities
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023 2022 2022
Financtal assets RO’'000 uso’ee0 RO000 uSo000
At amortised cost
Trade and other receivables {excluding prepayments) 8,378 21,789 7.605 19,777
Short term deposits 7,306 19,000 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12,700 33,031 20,259 52,688
Financlal assets at fair value
Denvative financial instruments 3,484 9,061 5.614 14.600
31,868 82,881 33,478 87.065
Financial liabllities at amortised cost
Interest-bearing liabillities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 184,302 479,330 217,943 566,819
Lease liabilities 8,402 21,853 8,438 21,945
Dividend payabte 2,925 7.608 3,045 7.917
Trade payable and accruals (excluding VAT) 17,356 45,141 16,832 43,769
Financlal liabilitles at fair value
Der.ivative financial instruments 6,083 15,821 8,008 20.831
219,068 569,753 254 267 661.281

33 Comparative figures
Certain comparalive figures have been reclassified where necessary to confarm lo the current year presenlalion.

Following reclassification has been made in these financial statements.
Inventories The Company disclosed an amount of USD 6.25 million (RO 2.4 miltian) as non-current capital spares

balances in the financiat statement of 2022. However as the nature of capilal spares is consumables, this
has now been reclassified as cumrent asset under inventories
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